
 

 
i 

HAVANT BOROUGH 
COUNCIL 
PUBLIC SERVICE PLAZA 
CIVIC CENTRE ROAD 
HAVANT 
HAMPSHIRE P09 2AX 
 
Telephone: 023 92446019 
Website: www.havant.gov.uk 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

18 January 2024 
 

SUMMONS 
 
Dear Councillor 
 
You are requested to attend the following meeting: 
 
Meeting: Shareholder Sub Committee 

Date: Wednesday 24 January 2024 

Time: 6.00 pm  
Please note this meeting will commence immediately after the 
end of the Extraordinary Cabinet meeting of the same date. 

Venue: Hurstwood Room, Public Service Plaza, Civic Centre Road, 
Havant, Hampshire PO9 2AX 

 
The business to be transacted is set out below:  
 
Steve Jorden 
Chief Executive of Havant Borough Council. 
 
 

SHAREHOLDER SUB COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP 
 
Membership:      Councillor Rennie (Chairman) 
 
Councillors Robinson, Bowerman, Bowdell, Lloyd and Fairhurst 
 
 
 
Contact Officer: Emma Carlyle - Democratic Services Officer  
 Email:  emma.carlyle@havant.gov.uk 
 
 
 
 
 

http://www.easthants.gov.uk/
mailto:emma.carlyle@havant.gov.uk


 

 
ii 

 
 
 

AGENDA 
 

 
  Page  
1  Apologies   

 
To record and receive apologies for absence.  

 

 
2  Minutes of the previous meeting   

 
To approve the minutes of the previous meeting held on 27 
September 2023. 
   

1 - 2 

 
3  Declarations of Interests   

 
To receive and record any declarations of interests from Members 
present.  

 

 
4  Appointment of Non-Executive Director to Norse SE   

 
Report number HBC/068/2024 of the Monitoring Officer attached.  

3 - 8 

 
 



 

 
iii 

 GENERAL INFORMATION 
 

 IF YOU WOULD LIKE A VERSION OF THIS AGENDA, OR 
ANY OF ITS REPORTS, IN LARGE PRINT, BRAILLE, 
AUDIO OR IN ANOTHER LANGUAGE PLEASE CONTACT 
DEMOCRATIC SERVICES ON 023 9244 6019 
 
Internet 
 
This agenda and its accompanying reports can also be found on the Havant 
Borough Council website: www.havant.gov.uk 
 
Public Attendance and Participation 
 
Members of the public are welcome to attend the Public Service Plaza and 
observe the meetings.  
 
The Council will endeavour to broadcast the meeting. However, please be 
aware that the meeting will continue, in the event of the broadcast failing at 
any time. The Councill will also endeavour to record the meeting and make 
the recording available to watch for up to six months from the date of the 
meeting. 
 
IP addresses will not be collected, however in order to function, Teams Live 
collects background data limited to when a user enters and leaves the 
meeting and the web browser version used. Data collected will be kept and 
recorded for the purposes of this meeting.  
 
 
Disabled Access 
 
The Public Service Plaza has full access and facilities for the disabled. 
 
Emergency Procedure 
 
Please ensure that you are familiar with the location of all emergency exits 
which are clearly marked. In the unlikely event of an emergency an alarm will 
sound. 
 
PLEASE EVACUATE THE BUILDING IMMEDIATELY. 
 
DO NOT RE-ENTER THE BUILDING UNTIL AUTHORISED TO DO SO 
 
No Smoking Policy 
 
The Public Service Plaza operates a strict No Smoking policy in all of its 
offices, corridors, meeting rooms and toilets.  
 
Parking 
 
Pay and display car parking is available in the Leisure Centre car park 
opposite the Plaza. 
 

 

http://www.havant.gov.uk/


 

 
iv 

 

 

Public 
Service 
Plaza



1 
 SHAREHOLDER SUB COMMITTEE 

27 September 2023 
 

HAVANT BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 
At a meeting of the Shareholder Sub Committee held on 27 September 2023 
 
 
Present  
 
Rennie (Chairman), Bowerman, Bowdell and Fairhurst 
 
 
1 Apologies  

 
Apologies of absence for this meeting were received by Councillor Robinson. 
 

2 Minutes of the previous meeting  
 
The minutes of the meeting of the Shareholders Sub-Committee held on the 
24th May 2023 were approved as a true record and signed by the Chairman. 
 

3 Declarations of Interests  
 
There were no declarations of interests relating to matters on the agenda. 
  

  
                          
                          
  

  
 

4 Exclusion of Press and Public  
 
The Committee was asked to consider whether to pass a resolution excluding 
the public from the meeting during consideration of any of the items on the 
agenda.   
  
Proposed by Councillor Bowerman and seconded by Councillor Bowdell 
RESOLVED that the public be excluded from the meeting during consideration 
of the item headed and numbered as below because: 

          it was likely, in view of the nature of the business to be transacted or the nature 
of the proceedings, that if members of the public were present during that item 
there would be disclosure to them of exempt information of the descriptions 
specified in paragraphs of Part 1 of Schedule 12A (as amended) of the Local 
Government Act 1972 shown against the heading in question; and 

in all the circumstances of the case, the public interest in maintaining the 
exemption outweighed the public interest in disclosing the information. 
  
Item  5-7            Shareholder Sub Committee Training Session 
                         Norse SE Business Plan 2023/2024 
                         Norse SE Business Planning 2024/2025 

Page 1

Agenda Item 2



2 
 SHAREHOLDER SUB COMMITTEE 

27 September 2023 
 

 
(Paragraph 3) 

  
Paragraph 3.    Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any 

particular person (including the authority holding that 
information).  

  
 

5 Shareholder Sub Committee Training Session  
 
The Shareholder Sub Committee undertook mandatory training as per section 
D1 1.61 of the constitution. 
 

6 Norse SE Business Plan 2023/2024  
 
The Managing Director of Norse South East gave an overview of the revised 
business plan for 2023/2024 and members of the sub committee asked 
relevant and clarifying questions. 
  
It was RESOLVED that the Business Plan for 2023/2024 be recommended to 
Cabinet. 
  
 

7 Norse SE Business Planning 2024/2025  
 
The Head of Commercial and the Managing Director of Norse South East 
introduced the proposed planning priorities for 2024/2025. The Sub-Committee 
asked clarifying questions and made relevant revisions.  
  
It was RESOLVED that the Environmental Services Planning Priorities for 
Norse South East for 2024/2025 be AGREED. 
  
  
Before the close of meeting, it was recognised that The Executive Head of 
Commercial and team have made a great effort to reduce the number of 
complaints received by members of the public to the service. This hard work 
has resulted in a reduction of complaints by 85%. Particular thanks also given 
to the Executive Head of Commercial for his efforts and hard work to the 
progression made in the Norse South East contract. 
  
  
  
 

 
 

The meeting commenced at 5.00 pm and concluded at 6.40 pm 
 

Page 2



 
 
 
 

Page 1 of 5 

Name of Committee: Shareholder Sub-Committee 

Committee Date: 24 January 2024 

Report Title: Appointment of Non-Executive Director to Norse SE 

Responsible Officer: Joanne McIntosh, Chief Legal Officer and Monitoring Officer.  

Cabinet Lead: Councillor Bowerman 

Status: Non-Exempt  

Urgent Decision: No Key Decision: No 

Appendices: None  

Background Papers: None  

Officer Contact: Jo.Mcintosh@havant.gov.uk 

Report Number: HBC/068/2024 

 

Corporate Priorities: 
 
The purpose of the Shareholder Sub-Committee is to approve and oversee the Council’s 
strategic objectives across the Council’s companies and to support the development of 
these companies in line with the Council’s regulations, ambitions, and corporate priorities. 
Ensuring a strong Board of Directors helps further the delivery of the Council’s priorities. 

 

Executive Summary: 
 
This report requests that Matt Goodwin, Acting Chief Executive, is appointed as a Non-
Executive Director of Norse SE.  
 
 
 

 

Recommendations: 
  

1) That Matt Goodwin, Acting Chief Executive, be appointed as a Non-Executive 
Director of Norse SE. 

  

Page 3

Agenda Item 4

mailto:Jo.Mcintosh@havant.gov.uk


 
 
 
 

Page 2 of 5 

1. Introduction 

1.1. Norse South East is Council joint venture company. The company is a 
supplier of numerous facilities management services, including 
grounds maintenance, trade waste and street scene services. 

1.2. The Council is represented by two Non-Executive Directors of the 
Board of Directors. 
 

2. Background 
2.1. Following the retirement of the Executive Head of Commercial, the 

Council should appoint a further Non-Executive Director to the Board 

of Directors to ensure that it is fully represented.   

2.2. It is proposed to appoint Matt Goodwin, Acting Chief Executive, as a 

Non Executive Director of Norse SE. 

2.3. The role of a director is multifaceted and wide-ranging. Directors must 

have an informed overview of a company’s activities and corporate 

governance, including an understanding of its exposure to risk and 

strategic direction. 

2.4. Non Executive Directors are generally regarded as having a policing 

role to play, monitoring and protecting shareholders’ interests. They 

are subject to the full range of directors duties.  

2.5. The Companies Act 2006 sets out the general duties of directors, 

which are: 

• to act within powers in accordance with the company’s 
constitution and to use those powers only for the purposes for 
which they were conferred 

• to promote the success of the company for the benefit of its 
members 

• to exercise independent judgement 
• to exercise reasonable care, skill and diligence 
• to avoid conflicts of interest 
• not to accept benefits from third parties 
• to declare an interest in a proposed transaction or arrangement 

2.5 Matt Goodwin, has the relevant professional skills set and 
experience to be appointed as a Non Executive Director. 

3. Options 
 

Page 4



 
 
 
 

Page 3 of 5 

3.1. The preferred option is to appoint Matt Goodwin, Acting Chief 

Executive, as a Non-Executive Director of Norse SE. Matt Goodwin 

has the relevant professional skills set and experience to represent 

the Council on the board. 

3.2. It is not in the Council’s interest to not appoint a further Non- 

Executive Director to Norse SE as this would leave the Council 

underrepresented on the Board of Directors.  

3.3. The Shareholder Sub-Committee could consider the appointment of a 

different Council officer to the board. Best practice guidance advises 

that this should not be the Monitoring Officer or S151 Officer but 

members could appoint another member of the Executive Leadership 

Team with the relevant skills and experience.  

4. Relationship to the Corporate Strategy 
4.1. The purpose of the Shareholder Sub-Committee is to approve and 

oversee the Council’s strategic objectives across the Council’s 

companies and to support the development of these companies in line 

with the Council’s regulations, ambitions, and corporate priorities. 

Ensuring a strong Board of Directors helps further the delivery of the 

Council’s priorities.  

5. Conclusion 
5.1. The Council should appoint Matt Goodwin, Acting Chief Executive, as 

a Non Executive Director of Norse SE. 

6. Implications and Comments 
6.1. S151 Comments 

6.2. Members should be reminded that the appointment of a Norse board 

member should be taken in the best interests of the company, not 

solely the Council. Whilst acting as a board member, Matt Goodwin 

should be making decisions in the best interest of the company. 

However, it is also important to recognise that a strong performing 

company, will also support the Council’s ambitions. To that extent, 

Matt Goodwin’s current position and his background make him an 

obvious choice and I would highly recommend his appointment.  

6.3. Financial Implications  

Page 5



 
 
 
 

Page 4 of 5 

6.4. There are no financial implications arising from this appointment. 

Officers do not receive any separate renumeration for performing this 

role.  

6.5. Monitoring Officer Comments 

6.6. Appointment as a Non Executive Director ensures strategic oversight 

of Norse SE and is in the best interests of both the Council and Norse 

SE. 

6.7. Legal Implications  

6.8. The Officer appointment accords with the Shareholder Agreement 

and ensures that there is sufficient expertise and oversight on the 

Board. 

6.9. Equality and Diversity 

6.10. There are no specific implications arising from this report. 

6.11. Human Resources 

6.12. There are no specific implications arising from this report. As stated 

above, there is no separate remuneration package for performance of 

this role.  

6.13. Information Governance 

6.14. There are no specific implications arising from this report. 

6.15. Climate and Environment 

6.16. There are no specific implications arising from this report. 

7. Risks 
7.1. All directors are personally responsible and liable for their actions as a 

director. The Council holds indemnity insurance in respect of officers 

appointed as directors by virtue of their council role.  

8. Consultation 
8.1. Given the nature of the report no formal consultation has been 

undertaken.  

9. Communications 
9.1. Given the nature of the report no communications have been planned. 

This report is public and available on the Council’s website in the 

interest of openness and transparency.  

 

Page 6



 
 
 
 

Page 5 of 5 

Agreed and signed off by: Date: 

Cabinet Lead: 
 

Cllr Bowerman   

Executive Head: Matt Goodwin  15 January 2024 

Monitoring Officer: Jo McIntosh 15 January 2024 

Section151 Officer: Steve Pink  15 January 2024 

 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the previous meeting
	4 Appointment of Non-Executive Director to Norse SE

